
Cannon Beach Rural Fire Protection District 
Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting – April 8th, 2024, at 6:00pm 
Fire Station Board Room – 188 Sunset Boulevard, Cannon Beach, OR 

AGENDA 
(posted April 1, 2024) 

• Call to Order

• Approve Agenda

• Public Comments and Correspondence

• Introduction and pinning of new firefighters

• Approve March 11, 2024, meeting minutes.

• Status Reports
o Finance
o Call Response
o Training
o Projects
o Civil Service

• Business Items
o Discussion of accounting services – (Information)
o IGA with Hamlet for Part-time staffing – (information)
o IGA with Hamlet for State Conflagrations – (Information)
o IGA with Hamlet for Administrative services – (Information)
o Approve changes to policy 5 – Personnel (Action)

• Directors Comments

• Meeting Minutes Review

• Adjourn

Public is welcome to join in person or by Zoom. 
https://zoom.us/j/96909730187 
Meeting ID: 969 0973 0187  
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of the meeting and is limited to three minutes per person. 

https://zoom.us/j/96909730187


Phone (503)-436-2949 – Fax (503)436-9639 -  www.cbfire.com  -           @CannonBeachFire 

STAFF REPORT 

FIREFIGHTER INTRODUCTION 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Date: April 8, 2024  Prepared by: Marc Reckmann, Fire Chief 

BACKGROUND 

With the voter approval of the local option levy in November, we conducted a hiring process.  Through that 
assessment process we hired three firefighters and created a list for future vacancies. Three firefighters started 
initial training on March 6th.  They will have 6 weeks of day training, before moving to shift on April 15th.  

Strategies: 

With the initial training completed, Cannon Beach Fire will be staffed with 2 firefighter/EMT 24 hours a say 
starting April 15th.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Please welcome Kevin Slater, James Hutchison, and Matt Thornehill. 

Kevin Slater join as volunteer with Cannon Beach in 2018 has been instrumental in the lifeguard program. 
While in Cannon Beach, has been employed by Coaster Construction .  Kevin lives in Cannon Beach with his 
wife Camille.  

James Hutchison grew up in Seaside and join Gearhart Fire Department in August of 2014.  James came to 
Cannon Beach as a part-time and volunteer October of 2023.  

Matt Thornehill joined Cannon Beach Fire as a volunteer in fall of 2020.  Matt has worked as a lifeguard 2 
seasons and has also worked in the part time program.  Matt lives in Elsie with his wife Stevie and daughter 
Willow. 

List of Attachments 
none 

http://www.cbfire.com/


Cannon Beach Rural Fire Protec�on District 
Board of Directors 

Regular Mee�ng – March 11th ,2024 at 6:05PM 
Fire Sta�on Board Room – 188 Sunset Boulevard, Cannon Beach, OR 

MINUTES 

• Call to Order 
o Presiding:  Bob Heymann 
o Recording Secretary:  Karen Apple 
o Directors Present:  Heidi Dethloff, Dave Herman, Bob Heymann, Jenee Pearce-Mushen, Dave Pietka 
o Staff Present:  Marc Reckmann, Jason Smith 

 

• Public Comments and Correspondence- None 

• Approve the minutes from Feb. 12th,2024. 
Mo�on: Approve min for Feb. 12th,2024 
Moved: Dave Pietka Seconded:  Jenee Pearce-Mushen Approved 5-0 

• Status Reports 
o Finance - Reckmann (atachment A) 
o Call Response – Reckmann (atachment B) 
o Staffing – (atachment C) 
o Projects - Reckmann (atachment D) 
o Civil Service – Reckmann (atachment E) 

 
 

• Business Items 

 

o Finding of Fact Public Hearing, Arch Cape sta�on addi�on – approve finding of facts- (ac�on) 
Mo�on:  Arch Cape sta�on addi�on to approve finding facts 
Moved: Jenee Pearce-Mushen Seconded: Heidi Dethloff Approved 5-0 

 

o Approve Chief Review and step increase – (ac�on)  
Mo�on: approve IGA (review and the step increase) 
Moved: Dave Pietka Seconded: Heidi Dethloff Approved 5-0 

 

o Cost recovery repeal Ordinance 21-01 & 21-02 and replace with Ordinance 24-01 – (ac�on)  
Mo�on: approve IGA  
Moved: Dave Pietka Seconded: Jenee Pearce-Mushen Approved 5-0 

 

 
o Approve 2024-2025 COLA– (ac�on) 



Mo�on:  Approve 2024-2025 COLA 3% increase 
Moved: Dave Pietka Seconded: Jenee Pearce-Mushen Approved 5-0 

 

 

 

o Discussion of Chief officer housing – (informa�on) Bob wanted to give background on housing. 
We are currently looking at proper�es that we could possibly rent. The ques�on is what the 
district role should be, ren�ng, leasing, etc.  The 2nd issue is that the chief came to Bob asking 
that this be put in a policy. The discussion that Dave and Bob have been having is “what do we 
need for standard of cover what is the impression that we want to give our community.” They 
have been going back and forth on what is in the current policy. Heidi did ask to see the policy. 
The Chief did go over the background of what the contracts say about housing and the original 
policy. The Chief would like to point out that the #1 - issue he needs to be in district #2 - issue is 
the cost of housing. The chief believes for planning in the next few years is officer housing in the 
district. Both he and John could have a big possibility of leaving in the next 5 years. If we don’t 
have housing for upcoming officers, we won’t be able to get new officers interested in coming 
here. Bob would like to come back on our next mee�ng if we want to create a new policy.  

o Discussion and update of Capital Reserve to include staff vehicles and Lifeguard equipment – 
(informa�on) The Chief went over all current staff vehicles. What they are purposing is the at 
chief’s vehicle will go to Shaunna the pickup will go to the lifeguard, everything else will stay as 
is. We are ge�ng the expedi�on from the police dept and that will go to the new head lifeguard 
and the Chief will get a new vehicle. This is in the budget to get a new vehicle.  

o Discussion of Hamlet rela�onship – (informa�on) The Chief went over what we are doing with 
our rela�onship with Hamlet, Jason and chief have met with their volunteers. We are helping 
guide them and help them while they have no chief. Jason and Chief feel that Hamlet is very 
important to us. We will probably start merging our volunteers. The Chief feels this is a good 
rela�onship. We have heard nothing from their board at this point, but we expect that we will 
hear from them this Thursday at their board mee�ng. The chief would like to help them with 
ge�ng a staffing grant for 35k.  

 

• Directors Comments- None 
 

 

• Mee�ng Minutes Review 

 

• Adjourn 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 
• Directors Comments 
o Dethloff: None 
o Herman: None 
o Heymann: None 
o Pearce-Mushen: Had a blood drive at the Chamber today. 
o Pietka: None 

 

• Mee�ng minutes presented online by Apple and approved with minor changes. 

• The meeting adjourned at 9:03pm. 
 

X
Robert Heymann
President

 



 

Fire Chief’s Report 1 9/8/23 

 

Fire Chief Report 
Reporting Period: March 1 to March 31 

 
Projects and Administration 

 

 Significant calls  
 49, nothing significant, but a significant increase.  

 Building 
 Coming to completion of renovation  

 Radio system:   
 Completing a 190 agreement (non-taxing district) 
 New CAD working on 18 month implantation 
 Hopefully moving to county wide dispatch channel this summer. 
 Completely new vision of dispatch center, moving in the right direction. 

 Apparatus 
 Ladder truck is getting transmission rebuilt.   

 Meetings 
 County Fire Defense 
 City Staff 
 City Council 
 County Ambulance Service Area Committee 
 Communication committee 

 Chief vacation:   
 Chief conference May 1-3 
 Vacation June 14-22 

 Projects 
  
  



 

Phone (503)436-2949 – Fax (503)436-9639 -  www.cbfire.com  -              @CannonBeachFire 
 

Project update 4/3/24 
Project: 

Cannon Beach Fire Station Seismic Rehabilitation Grant 
 

Description: 
In September of 2022 Cannon Beach Fire District was awarded a $1,926,881 grant to complete Seismic 
upgrades to the station. 
 

Status: 
Have contract with WRK engineers and CB Construction for the project.  Project must be completed by 
September 30, 2024.   
Bid for seismic is 1.3M.  Bid for extra work (lighting, bay heat, siding) $67,000. Very close to finished with 
complete project.  On the final touch ups.  
 
 
 

Project: 
New Engine 

 
Description: 

In May of 2021 a purchase agreement was signed with HME for the purchase of a new engine for $552,158.  A 
loan was acquired for $300,000 of that for 5 years with an annual payment of $65,000 beginning June of 2022.  
The Engine was originally to be delivered March of 2022.   
 

Status: 
Went back to Eugene for another issue.  Still waiting on HME to authorize the repair.  Have now been in 
contact with our attorney to discuss legal action.  Demand letter sent with a request for response by January 
5th.  Received communication from HME, they have sent plans to Oregon Apparatus for repair, needed valve is 
backordered, may be 8 weeks before valve is received.  Delivery is estimated 2nd week of April.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.cbfire.com/


 

Phone (503)436-2949 – Fax (503)436-9639 -  www.cbfire.com  -              @CannonBeachFire 
 

Project: 

COWS 
 

Description: 
The Community Warning System (COWS) was put into place in 1995.  There have been few upgrades done to 
is over the years, but the funding has not been there to do the maintenance that it needs.  In 2022 an 
agreement was reached with the City of Cannon Beach to begin turning the overall operations of the program 
as well as the maintenance and upgrades of the towers inside the City of Cannon Beach over to Cannon Beach 
Emergency Management.  Cannon Beach Fire District will be responsible for the maintenance of the towers 
located in Arch Cape. 
 

Status: 
New cabinets arrived, working on install plan.  March 4-5 final prep visit.  April 15-18 Install of system. 
 
 

Project: 

Arch Cape addition 
 

Description: 
Plan to add 2400 square feet to the south side of the building.  Been working on process for RFQ.  
 

Status: 
Approved the design/build process.  Began working on RFQ.  Was given notice that this station is eligible for 
seismic grant now that it is 10 years old.  After talking to architect, we are going to slow down a bit and submit 
grant request for seismic retrofit grant which would pay for part of the addition costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.cbfire.com/


 

Phone (503)436-2949 – Fax (503)436-9639 -  www.cbfire.com  -              @CannonBeachFire 
 

 
Project: 

New staff vehicle 
 

Description: 
Approved at the March board meeting to move forward with new staff vehicle purchase. 
 

Status: 
When contacted fleet purchase, it was found out that a base model expedition and Tahoe was 2 year wait. 
After further research found a company that has prebuild command vehicles.  Was given 2 local departments 
that purchased vehicles from them recently and contacted them. Both department were happy with the 
product.  Have ordered and will have by end of April. 
 
 
 

http://www.cbfire.com/


Phone (503)436-2949 – Fax (503)436-9639 -  www.cbfire.com  -            @CannonBeachFire 

March 2024 Call Statistics 
Calls for service by month/year: 

Tourism vs. resident calls: 

Types of calls: 

January 47 41 29 56
February 33 32 30 41
March 28 36 45 49
TOTAL for TYD 108 109 104 146

ANSWERS

No
Yes

# INCIDENTS % of Total
District Resident or Property Owner?

32 65%
17 35%

MAJOR INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS
Fires 1
Rescue & Emergency Medical Service 32
Service Call 7
Good Intent Call 7
False Alarm & False Call 2

TOTAL 49
4%

100%

% of TOTAL
2%

65%
14%
14%

Arch Cape vs. Cannon Beach area
Arch Cape

Cannon Beach

# INCIDENTS % of Total
8 16%
41 84%

http://www.cbfire.com/


INCIDENT TYPE PRIMARY ACTION TAKEN STATION NAME Response notes
321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 

with injury Provide first aid & check for injuries Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide basic life support (BLS) Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide basic life support (BLS) Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Control traffic Arch Cape

551 - Assist police or other governmental 
agency Control traffic Cannon Beach

622 - No incident found on arrival at 
dispatch address Action taken, other Cannon Beach

551 - Assist police or other governmental 
agency Investigate Cannon Beach

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route Cancelled en route Cannon Beach
551 - Assist police or other governmental 

agency Investigate Cannon Beach

550 - Public service assistance, other Assist physically disabled Cannon Beach

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries Provide advanced life support (ALS) Cannon Beach MVA due to medical, cardiac arrest. 
Great response. 

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route Cancelled en route Cannon Beach

111 - Building fire Extinguishment by fire service 
personnel Cannon Beach

2nd alarm structure fire seaside.  
Great response.  3 chiefs, 2 engines, 

and still 4 personel in station. 

736 - CO detector activation due to 
malfunction Investigate Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Emergency medical services, other Arch Cape

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route Cancelled en route Cannon Beach
321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 

with injury Provide advanced life support (ALS) Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide advanced life support (ALS) Cannon Beach Cardiac arrest, great response.

Cannon Beach Fire & Rescue
Cannon Beach, OR
This report was generated on 4/4/2024 12:49:13 PM

Type and Action per Incident for Date Range

Station: All Stations | Start Date: 03/01/2024 | End Date: 03/31/2024

2024-101

2024-102

2024-99

2024-100

INCIDENT #

2024-98

2024-107

2024-108

2024-105

2024-106

2024-103

2024-104

2024-113

2024-114

2024-111

2024-112

2024-109

2024-110

2024-115

 Reviewed Incidents Only.  Incidents with multiple exposures will be
listed once for each exposure. 

 emergencyreporting.com 
Doc Id: 1254 
Page # 1 of 1 



Cannon Beach Fire & Rescue
Cannon Beach, OR
This report was generated on 4/4/2024 12:49:13 PM

Type and Action per Incident for Date Range

Station: All Stations | Start Date: 03/01/2024 | End Date: 03/31/2024

551 - Assist police or other governmental 
agency Investigate Arch Cape

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide basic life support (BLS) Arch Cape

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide basic life support (BLS) Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide first aid & check for injuries Cannon Beach

364 - Surf rescue Investigate Cannon Beach Good response.  Had new hires in 
training. 

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide first aid & check for injuries Cannon Beach

622 - No incident found on arrival at 
dispatch address Investigate Cannon Beach

341 - Search for person on land Search Cannon Beach
321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 

with injury Provide first aid & check for injuries Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide basic life support (BLS) Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide basic life support (BLS) Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide basic life support (BLS) Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide basic life support (BLS) Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide basic life support (BLS) Cannon Beach

324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. Control traffic Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide first aid & check for injuries Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide basic life support (BLS) Cannon Beach

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries Recover body Cannon Beach
611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route Cancelled en route Cannon Beach

2024-119

2024-120

2024-117

2024-118

2024-116

2024-125

2024-126

2024-123

2024-124

2024-121

2024-122

2024-131

2024-132

2024-129

2024-130

2024-127

2024-128

2024-134
2024-135

 Reviewed Incidents Only.  Incidents with multiple exposures will be
listed once for each exposure. 

 emergencyreporting.com 
Doc Id: 1254 
Page # 1 of 1 



Cannon Beach Fire & Rescue
Cannon Beach, OR
This report was generated on 4/4/2024 12:49:13 PM

Type and Action per Incident for Date Range

Station: All Stations | Start Date: 03/01/2024 | End Date: 03/31/2024

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide basic life support (BLS) Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide basic life support (BLS) Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide basic life support (BLS) Cannon Beach

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route Cancelled en route Arch Cape

561 - Unauthorized burning Extinguishment by fire service 
personnel Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide basic life support (BLS) Cannon Beach

745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - 
unintentional Investigate Arch Cape

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide basic life support (BLS) Cannon Beach

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide advanced life support (ALS) Arch Cape

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident 
with injury Provide first aid & check for injuries Cannon Beach

552 - Police matter Assistance, other Cannon Beach

2024-138

2024-139

2024-136

2024-137

2024-146

2024-144

2024-145

2024-142

2024-143

2024-140

2024-141

 Reviewed Incidents Only.  Incidents with multiple exposures will be
listed once for each exposure. 

 emergencyreporting.com 
Doc Id: 1254 
Page # 1 of 1 



Phone (503)-436-2949 – Fax (503)436-9639 -  www.cbfire.com  -           @CannonBeachFire 

STAFF REPORT 

ACCOUNTING SERVICES 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Date: April 8, 2024  Prepared by: Marc Reckmann, Fire Chief 

BACKGROUND 

Prior to 2009, Cannon Beach Fire District did accounting in house.  With the retirement of Mike Graham, the 
district outsourced the accounting.  In 2017, the district contracted with Bill Cote, CPA for services.  Since that 
time the district has grown and there is more demand for his office.  Bill sent us a notice last month that he 
would not be seeking to renew the contract with the district. We do not have the ability to completely take on 
the responsibility, specifically payroll.   

Strategies: 

Seeking an accountant that can assist with payroll and reports.   

RECOMMENDATION 

Continue to reach out to known accountants.  Post advertisement on Facebook. 

List of Attachments 
none 

http://www.cbfire.com/


Phone (503)-436-2949 – Fax (503)436-9639 -  www.cbfire.com  -           @CannonBeachFire 

STAFF REPORT 

HAMLET PART-TIME STAFFING 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Agenda Date: April 8, 2024  Prepared by: Marc Reckmann, Fire Chief 

BACKGROUND 

Hamlet Fire District has received a $35,000 grant for summer staffing.  This is the same grant that we will 
receive and that we have for the last 2 years that has started our part-time program. Hamlet Fire District does 
not have the ability to manage payroll.  I have spoke with the grant manager about using Cannon Beach Fire to 
manage the part time program.  

Strategies: 

Allow for 3 part time per day, sending 1 to Hamlet to staff. This will be a benefit to Cannon Beach as it will 
help staff Hamlet to respond for coverage of Cannon Beach.  It will also help train Hamlet Fire personnel.  At 
the end of September, we will bill Hamlet Fire for the hours worked at Hamlet, the grant allows up to 10% to be 
used for administration of the grant, so if all money is not used by staffing we can bill for 10%.     

RECOMMENDATION 

Review and recommend changes to IGA. 

List of Attachments 
none 

http://www.cbfire.com/


INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
FOR SERVICES 

This agreement, by and between Cannon Beach Rural Fire Protection District 
(CBRFPD) and Hamlet Rural Fire Protection District (HRFPD) made and entered into 
the 1st day of May, 2024, for the purpose sharing resources from the State of Oregon 
Wildfire Staffing Grant 

RECITALS 

Whereas Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 190 authorizes units of local 
government to enter into written agreements with other units of local government for any 
or all of the functions and activities of a municipality to the agreement; and 

Whereas, both entities are a duly organized government agencies; and 

Whereas, a strong working relationship is an asset to both entities. 

AGREEMENT 

Now, therefore, in consideration of each entity’s performance of the covenants, terms 
and conditions herein as they run to the benefit of the other, the entities mutually agree: 

SECTION 1 - PURPOSE 
1.1 The purpose of this agreement is for Cannon Beach RFPD to provide personnel 

to staff the Hamlet RFPD Necanicum Fire Station with 1 person from June 1 to 
October 1.  This is made possible through the State of Oregon Wildfire Staffing 
Grant.  

1.2 Recognizing the purpose and the spirit with which this agreement is entered into, 
both entities agree to cooperate, consult, meet, and work together in resolving, to 
the mutual satisfaction of entities, any question or problems which may hereafter 
arise in connection with the performance of this agreement.  This agreement is 
made in good faith that there are no promises from CBRFPD on level of service, 
but CBRFPD will make best efforts to assist HRFPD.  

SECTION 2 - TRAINING 
CBRFPD shall be trained in the operation and driving of all HRFPD apparatus.  HRFPD 
be encouraged to also work as long as meet training requirements set forth in the grant. 

SECTION 3 – PERSONEL 
While working, all personnel will be CBRFPD employees and will be subject to 
personnel polices of CBRFPD.  CBRFPD will be responsible for all reporting a payroll.  



 
SECTION 4 - COMPENSATION 
 
CBRFPD will file all paperwork with the state for compensation.  All personnel, CBRFPD 
or HRFPD will be paid through CBRFPD.  At the end of the grant period, CBRFD will 
provide HRFPD with a detailed invoice up to $35,000; 10% may be for administration of 
the grant.  
 
 
SECTION 5- RELEASE OF LIBILITY 
To the extent that such claims are covered by HRFPD insurance, HRFPD agrees 
that it will defend, save and hold harmless CBRFPD from any and all claims that 
result from HRFPD providing services under this agreement. This specifically 
includes defense of HRFPD for any actions brought against it by any party as a 
result of CBRFPD actions in responding to an emergency on HRFPD behalf. 
 
SECTION 6 – LIABILITY AND WORKERS COMPENSATION 
HRFPD and CBRFPD agree to provide liability and workers compensation 
insurance for their respective personnel. 
 
SECTION 8 – TERM 
This agreement shall be in place after signed until parties agree to terminate the 
agreement.  
 
 
SECTION 9 – DEFAULT 
Any party who has cause to believe that the other party is in default of any of the 
terms or conditions of this agreement running to the benefit of the former, shall give 
the party alleged to be in default notice in writing and allow not less than ten (10) 
days in which the default may be cured; and if not so cured, the complaining party 
may declare this agreement and its further obligations to be terminated.  

 
The parties may mutually agree at any time to terminate this agreement. 
 
 
 
SECTION 10 – OBLIGATIONS 
CBRFPD will fill all paperwork with the State of Oregon for reimbursement.  CBRFPD 
will provide HRFPD a breakdown of costs and reimbursement, providing HRFPD 
reimbursement after reimbursement is received from the State of Oregon.   
 
 
SECTION 11 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
This written agreement is the entire agreement of the entities hereto regarding the 
subject matter of this agreement and contains all of the terms and conditions of the 



agreement between the entities.  All prior agreements, understandings or the like, 
whether written or verbal, are superseded by this agreement and shall be of no force or 
effect whatsoever.  Any amendment to this agreement shall be in writing and signed by 
the representatives of the entities as duly authorized by the governing body of each 
entity.    
 
 
SECTION 13 - EXECUTION 
The execution of this agreement by each of the undersigned is done pursuant to the 
authorization of the governing body of each entity, voted upon in an open meeting in 
accordance with Oregon Law, and each person executing this agreement hereby 
certifies that they are authorized to execute this agreement on behalf of Hamlet RFPD 
and Cannon Beach RFPD.  In witness whereof, the entities, through their duly 
authorized representatives, have executed this Agreement on the date or dates set forth 
below. 
 
Cannon Beach Rural Fire Protection District  
 
 
By:       Date:       
     Name: Bob Heymann 

Title: Board President 
 
 
Hamlet Rural Fire Protection District 
 
 
By:       Date:       

Name: Norma Painter 
      Title: Board President 



 

Phone (503)-436-2949 – Fax (503)436-9639 -  www.cbfire.com  -           @CannonBeachFire 
 

STAFF REPORT 

HAMLET STATE CONFLAGRATIONS 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Agenda Date: April 8, 2024  Prepared by: Marc Reckmann, Fire Chief 
 
 
BACKGROUND 

Cannon Beach Fire participates with sending resources with the Clatsop County Task Force for state wildfire 
conflagrations.  Cannon Beach participates with sending type 6 and team leader.  If they state requests type 3 
resources, we do not participate as we do not have a type 3 apparatus. When a team of type 3 goes out, thee is a 
struggle to staff a water tender with them.     

 

Strategies: 

Hamlet Fire has a very nice water tender, but not the personnel to send it.  This agreement would allow for 
Cannon Beach to staff the water tender and send it with the type 3 team.  The agreement would be to split the 
revenue with the state for the apparatus 2/3 to Hamlet 1/3 to Cannon Beach.  Cannon Beach would also benefit 
from the revenue of the personnel as it is likely it would be paid staff on the tender.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Review and recommend changes to IGA.  

 

List of Attachments 
none 

http://www.cbfire.com/


INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
FOR SERVICES 

This agreement, by and between Cannon Beach Rural Fire Protection District 
(CBRFPD) and Hamlet Rural Fire Protection District (HRFPD) made and entered into 
the 1st day of May, 2024, for the purpose sharing resources for State of Oregon 
Conflagration 

RECITALS 

Whereas Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 190 authorizes units of local 
government to enter into written agreements with other units of local government for any 
or all of the functions and activities of a municipality to the agreement; and 

Whereas, both entities are a duly organized government agencies; and 

Whereas, a strong working relationship is an asset to both entities. 

AGREEMENT 

Now, therefore, in consideration of each entity’s performance of the covenants, terms 
and conditions herein as they run to the benefit of the other, the entities mutually agree: 

SECTION 1 - PURPOSE 
1.1 The purpose of this agreement is for Cannon Beach RFPD to provide personnel 

to staff the water tender (3332) to respond at part of the Clatsop County Wildland 
taskforce/striketeam.  

1.2 Recognizing the purpose and the spirit with which this agreement is entered into, 
both entities agree to cooperate, consult, meet, and work together in resolving, to 
the mutual satisfaction of entities, any question or problems which may hereafter 
arise in connection with the performance of this agreement.  This agreement is 
made in good faith that there are no promises from CBRFPD on level of service, 
but CBRFPD will make best efforts to assist HRFPD.  

SECTION 2 - TRAINING 
CBRFPD shall be training the operation and driving of HRFPD water tender.  HRFPD 
personnel may also staff the water tender and deploy on the taskforce/striketeam if they 
meet the state training requirements.   

SECTION 3 – AUTHORITY 
HRFPD gives CBRFPD the authority to staff and respond the water tender as a 
CBRFPD resource on paperwork with the state as to make paperwork easier on all 
parties.  



 
SECTION 4 - COMPENSATION 
 
CBRFPD will file all paperwork with the state for compensation.  All personnel, CBRFPD 
or HRFPD will be paid through CBRFPD.  After any fuel deductions or apparatus repairs 
because of the deployment, CBRFPD will pay HRFPD 2/3 of the received apparatus 
reimbursement.  All personnel costs and reimbursement will be CBRFPD.  
 
 
SECTION 5- RELEASE OF LIBILITY 
To the extent that such claims are covered by HRFPD insurance, HRFPD agrees 
that it will defend, save and hold harmless CBRFPD from any and all claims that 
result from HRFPD providing services under this agreement. This specifically 
includes defense of HRFPD for any actions brought against it by any party as a 
result of CBRFPD actions in responding to an emergency on HRFPD behalf. 
 
SECTION 6 – LIABILITY AND WORKERS COMPENSATION 
HRFPD and CBRFPD agree to provide liability and workers compensation 
insurance for their respective personnel. 
 
SECTION 8 – TERM 
This agreement shall be in place after signed until parties agree to terminate the 
agreement.  
 
 
SECTION 9 – DEFAULT 
Any party who has cause to believe that the other party is in default of any of the 
terms or conditions of this agreement running to the benefit of the former, shall give 
the party alleged to be in default notice in writing and allow not less than ten (10) 
days in which the default may be cured; and if not so cured, the complaining party 
may declare this agreement and its further obligations to be terminated.  

 
The parties may mutually agree at any time to terminate this agreement. 
 
 
 
SECTION 10 – OBLIGATIONS 
CBRFPD will fill all paperwork with the State of Oregon for reimbursement.  CBRFPD 
will provide HRFPD a breakdown of costs and reimbursement, providing HRFPD 
reimbursement after reimbursement is received from the State of Oregon.   
 
 
SECTION 11 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
This written agreement is the entire agreement of the entities hereto regarding the 
subject matter of this agreement and contains all of the terms and conditions of the 



agreement between the entities.  All prior agreements, understandings or the like, 
whether written or verbal, are superseded by this agreement and shall be of no force or 
effect whatsoever.  Any amendment to this agreement shall be in writing and signed by 
the representatives of the entities as duly authorized by the governing body of each 
entity.    
 
 
SECTION 13 - EXECUTION 
The execution of this agreement by each of the undersigned is done pursuant to the 
authorization of the governing body of each entity, voted upon in an open meeting in 
accordance with Oregon Law, and each person executing this agreement hereby 
certifies that they are authorized to execute this agreement on behalf of Hamlet RFPD 
and Cannon Beach RFPD.  In witness whereof, the entities, through their duly 
authorized representatives, have executed this Agreement on the date or dates set forth 
below. 
 
Cannon Beach Rural Fire Protection District  
 
 
By:       Date:       
     Name: Bob Heymann 

Title: Board President 
 
 
Hamlet Rural Fire Protection District 
 
 
By:       Date:       

Name: Norma Painter 
      Title: Board President 



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
FOR SERVICES 

This Agreement, by and between Cannon Beach Rural Fire Protection District 
(“CBRFPD”) and Hamlet Rural Fire Protection District (“HRFPD”) (collectively, the 
“Districts”), is made and entered into the ____ day of _______, 2024, for the purpose of having 
CBRFPD provide administrative services to HRFPD. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statutes (“ORS”) Chapter 190 authorizes units of local 
government to enter into written agreements with other units of local government for any or all 
of the functions and activities of a municipality to the agreement; and 

WHEREAS, both Districts are a duly organized rural fire protection districts under ORS 
Chapter 478; and 

WHEREAS, due to staffing changes, HRFPD desires for CBRFPD to provide 
administrative support services for HRFPRD for the foreseeable future; and 

WHEREAS, HRFPD remains an important fire protection district for the community, as 
well as CBRFPD, given its coverage area, equipment, and supplies that are shared with 
CBRFPD; and   

WHEREAS, the Districts collectively recognize need for CBRFPD to provide 
administrative services for HRFPD, and desire to memorialize the terms, conditions, and 
obligations for providing these administrative services. 

Now, therefore, in consideration of each party’s performance of the covenants, terms, and 
conditions herein, the parties mutually agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

SECTION 1 – PURPOSE 

1.1 The purpose of this agreement is for CBRFPD to provide certain administrative services 
for HRFPD.  

1.2 These “Administrative Services” include, but are not limited to: access and water supply 
plan review; monthly activity reporting; reporting to insurance; reporting to state fire 
marshal office; grant management; coordination of station and apparatus repair; and 
personnel management, training, and board reports.  Additional terms and conditions of 
certain Administrative Services, such as Training and Alarm Response, are provided 
further below, in Sections 2 and 3. 



 
 

1.3 Recognizing the purpose and the spirit with which this Agreement is entered into, the 
Districts agree to cooperate, consult, meet, and work together in resolving, to the mutual 
satisfaction of the Districts, any question or problems which may hereafter arise in 
connection with the performance of this Agreement.   
 

1.4 This Agreement is made in good faith that there are no promises from CBRFPD on level 
of service, but CBRFPD will make best efforts to assist HRFPD.  

 
SECTION 2 – TRAINING 
 
2.1 CBRFPD shall provide fire & EMS training to HRFPD personnel.   
 
2.2 Training will be in conjunction with training of CBRFPD personnel.  All HRFPD 

personnel shall be placed on the Department of Public Safety Standards and training 
roster for CBRFPD to aid in accreditation process.   

 
2.3 As reasonably practical, and within CBRFPD’s sole discretion, personnel from CBRFPD 

will be trained on HRFPD apparatus, and personnel from HRFPD will be trained on 
CBRFPD apparatus.  

 
SECTION 3 – ALARM RESPONSE 
 
3.1 As reasonably practical, and within CBRFPD’s sole discretion, CBRFPD will provide 

HRFPD with a duty officer to handle calls into HRFPD.  When handling calls for 
HRFPD, CBRFPD shall have full and total control of the incidents they respond to in 
HRFPD coverage area.  

 
3.2 Personnel from HRFPD may be issued gear by CBRFPD, and personnel from CBRFPD 

may be issued gear from HRFPD to aid in any response.  
 

SECTION 4 – HRFPD OBLIGATIONS 
 
4.1 HRFPD agrees to provide CBRFPD with all reports and personnel files on HRFPD 

personnel, including copies of any physicals or other medical information which might 
indicate any inability or restriction on the part of any member to participate in 
training or fire and emergency response activities. 
 

4.2 HRFPD agrees to provide CBRFPD all reports of the storage of hazardous 
materials, including their location and amounts located within the district. 
 

4.3 HRFPD agrees to provide copies of all fire and safety inspections and to coordinate 
pre fire planning within the HRFPD area with CBRFPD. 

 
SECTION 5 - COMPENSATION 



 
 
5.1 For the Administrative Services provided under this Agreement, HRFPD will pay 

CBRFPD $5,000 (Five Thousand Dollars) annually.   
 
5.2 HRFPD shall remit payment by January of the budget year.  
 
 
SECTION 6 - INDEMNIFICATION 
 
6.1 To the extent permitted by Oregon law, HRFPD agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, 

and defend CBRFPD, and its officers, elected officials, agents, and employees and 
volunteers, from any and all costs, damages, claims, or  actions arising out of or based 
upon damages or injuries to persons or property caused by HRFPD in performance of 
this Agreement, or caused by CBRFPD, in performance of services under this 
Agreement on behalf of HRFPD. 

 
SECTION 7 – INSURANCE AND WORKERS COMPENSATION 
 
7.1 The Districts represent that they are insured according to statutory limits set in the 

State of Oregon for liability, property, or auto claims.  The Districts shall 
maintain insurance to cover any claim that may result from or arise out of this 
Agreement. 

 
7.2 HRFPD and CBRFPD agree to provide liability and workers compensation 

insurance for their respective personnel. 
 
 
SECTION 8 – TERM AND TERMINATION 
 
8.1 The term of this Agreement shall be for one (1) year, commencing on the 1st day of 

July, 2024.  This Agreement shall automatically renew on the 30th day of June of 
each successive year.   

 
8.2 Either District may decide to terminate this Agreement at any time, subject to the 

following procedure.  Prior to termination, the Districts shall meet within 30 days, 
on a mutually acceptable date to review the Agreement, make any modifications 
necessary thereto, and determine whether to terminate or continue the Agreement.  
If either District still wishes to terminate this Agreement after the meeting, such 
termination shall be effective [60] days after notice is provided to the other District 
in writing.  

 
8.3 Upon breach or default of any term of this Agreement by one of the parties, then 

the nondefaulting party may elect to terminate this Agreement, provided that the 



 
nondefaulting party provide the defaulting party ten (10) days to cure the alleged 
violation or breach of this Agreement.  If the defaulting party fails to do so, then the 
Agreement shall be considered terminated upon expiration of that tenday period.  
If CBRFPD is the party terminating the agreement, all sums paid by HRFPD will be 
returned on a prorated basis covering the time service was provided. 

SECTION 9 – MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
9.1 Legal Relationship; No Additional Benefits. Both parties agree and acknowledge that this 

Agreement create no partnership or joint venture, and that each party remains a separate 
public body and retains all immunities and privileges granted to them under Oregon law.  
The parties intend that the legal relationship between the parties be at all times and for all 
purposes under this Agreement that of independent contracting agencies.  The respective 
employees of each District remain employees of that District, and are not entitled to any 
overtime or other employment benefits of the other District. 

 
9.2 Assignments and Subcontracts.  Neither party shall subcontract or assign any part of the 

Agreement, or delegate any of its responsibilities under this Agreement, without the prior 
written approval of the other party.  Any attempted assignment or subcontract of this 
agreement without prior written approval of the other party shall be void.  The assigning 
or subcontracting party shall hold its assignee or subcontractor to all terms and conditions 
of this Agreement that would otherwise bind the party to whom consent was given.   

 
9.3 Access to Records. Upon reasonable advance notice, CBRFPD shall have access to the 

books, documents, and other records of HRFPD (electronic or otherwise) which are 
necessary for completion of this Agreement for the purpose of examination, copying and 
audit, unless otherwise limited by law. 

 
9.4 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of 

the parties with respect to the subject matter herein and supersedes all prior and 
contemporaneous understandings and agreements, whether written or oral, among the 
parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

 
9.5 No Third Party Beneficiary.  The Districts are the only parties to this Agreement and are 

the only parties entitled to enforce its terms.  Nothing in Agreement gives or is intended 
to give any benefit or right, whether directly or indirectly, to third persons, unless such 
third persons are individually identified by name and expressly described in this 
Agreement as intended beneficiaries.   

9.6 Compliance with Applicable Laws. The parties shall comply with all federal, state, 
county and local laws, ordinances and regulations applicable to the work to be done 
under this Agreement, including all applicable State and local public contracting 
provisions. 

 
9.7 Waiver, Severability. Waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement by either 

party does not constitute a waiver of any subsequent default or a modification of any 



 
other provision(s) of this Agreement. If any term or provision of this Agreement is 
declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the 
validity of the remaining terms and provision shall not be affected, and the rights and 
obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not 
contain the particular term or provision held invalid. 

 
9.8 Notices/Point of Contact. All notice or demands of any kind required or desired to be 

given by the parties must be in writing and shall be deemed delivered upon inperson 
delivery, depositing the notice or demand in the United States mail, certified or 
registered, postage prepaid, addressed to the respective party at its address listed below, 
or via electronic mail: 

 
To CBRFPD:   Cannon Beach Rural Fire Protection District 
    Attn:  Fire Chief 
    188 Sunset Blvd. 
    PO Box 24 
    Cannon Beach, OR 97110 
    5034362949 
    mreckmann@cbfire.com 

 
To HRFPD:   Hamlet Rural Fire Protection District  

Attn: Board Chair 
37240 Highway 26 
PO Box 765  
Seaside, OR 97138 

 
9.9 Force Majeure. Neither District shall be responsible for delay or default caused by any 

contingency beyond their control, including, but not limited to war or insurrection, strikes 
or lockouts by the parties' own employees, walkouts by the parties' own employees, fires, 
natural calamities, riots or demands or requirements of governmental agencies other than 
the Districts’. 

 
9.10 Governing Law. The provisions of this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with 

the laws of the State of Oregon. Any legal action involving any question arising under 
this Agreement must be brought in Clatsop County Circuit Court. If the claim must be 
brought in a federal forum then it shall be brought and conducted in the United States 
District Court for the State of Oregon. The parties agree to the jurisdiction of these 
courts. 

 
9.11 Counterparts.  The parties may execute this Agreement in counterparts, each of which 

constitutes an original and all of which, collectively, shall constitute only one Agreement.  
Delivery of an executed signature page by electronic scan is as effective as executing and 
delivering this Agreement in the presence of the other parties to this Agreement. 

 
9.12 Authority to Execute.  The execution of this agreement by each of the undersigned is 



 
done pursuant to the authorization of the governing body of each entity, voted upon in an 
open meeting in accordance with Oregon Law, and each person executing this agreement 
hereby certifies that they are authorized to execute this agreement on behalf of HRFPD 
and CBRFPD.   

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Districts, through their duly authorized representatives, 
have executed this Agreement on the date or dates set forth below. 
 
 
Cannon Beach Rural Fire Protection District  
 
 
By:       Date:       
     Name: Bob Heymann 

Title: Board President 
 
 
Hamlet Rural Fire Protection District 
 
 
By:       Date:       

Name: Norma Painter 
      Title: Board President 
























	Type and Action per Incident March 2024.pdf
	001254 - Type and Action per In

	Hamlet_CB_staffing.pdf
	INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
	FOR SERVICES
	RECITALS
	Whereas Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 190 authorizes units of local government to enter into written agreements with other units of local government for any or all of the functions and activities of a municipality to the agreement; and
	AGREEMENT
	SECTION 1 - PURPOSE
	SECTION 2 - TRAINING
	SECTION 3 – PERSONEL
	SECTION 4 - COMPENSATION
	SECTION 5- RELEASE OF LIBILITY
	SECTION 6 – LIABILITY AND WORKERS COMPENSATION
	SECTION 8 – TERM
	SECTION 9 – DEFAULT
	SECTION 11 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT
	SECTION 13 - EXECUTION

	Hamlet_CB_conflag.pdf
	INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
	FOR SERVICES
	RECITALS
	Whereas Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 190 authorizes units of local government to enter into written agreements with other units of local government for any or all of the functions and activities of a municipality to the agreement; and
	AGREEMENT
	SECTION 1 - PURPOSE
	SECTION 2 - TRAINING
	SECTION 3 – AUTHORITY
	SECTION 4 - COMPENSATION
	SECTION 5- RELEASE OF LIBILITY
	SECTION 6 – LIABILITY AND WORKERS COMPENSATION
	SECTION 8 – TERM
	SECTION 9 – DEFAULT
	SECTION 11 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT
	SECTION 13 - EXECUTION

	REV IGA Hamlet RFPD Admin Services ARSCHC 040324.pdf
	INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
	FOR SERVICES
	RECITALS
	WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statutes (“ORS”) Chapter 190 authorizes units of local government to enter into written agreements with other units of local government for any or all of the functions and activities of a municipality to the agreement; and
	AGREEMENT
	SECTION 1 – PURPOSE
	SECTION 2 – TRAINING
	SECTION 3 – ALARM RESPONSE
	SECTION 5 - COMPENSATION
	SECTION 6 - INDEMNIFICATION
	SECTION 7 – INSURANCE AND WORKERS COMPENSATION
	SECTION 8 – TERM AND TERMINATION




